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1 UNION SQUARE, MILFORD, NH 03055 TEL: (603)249-0620 WEB: WWW.MILFORD.NH.GOV 

 
Date: January 12, 2023 

To: Planning Board 

From: Terrence Dolan, Town Planner 

Subject:   SP2022-09 371 Elm Street, LLC, for the property located at Tax Map 16, Lot 1, 371 Elm Street. 
Minor Site Plan for a change of use from a motel to a multi-family apartment building and related site 
improvements on the subject property located in the Integrated Commercial Industrial district and West 
Elm Overlay. (Continued from 12/20/22) 

  
BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
This meeting is a Continuation of the December 20, 2022 Hearing for the Planning Board to consider a Minor Site Plan 
Application for a change of use from a motel to a 12-unit, multi-family (studio) apartment building with minor site 
improvements.  

This meeting shall be the second Planning Board public hearing for the project - Minor Site Plan Approval Request.  

The Planning Board, at their December 20, 2022 meeting, duly considered the insufficient (existing) parking conditions 
and concluded by requesting the Applicant to spend additional time to prepare a revised parking plan for the respective 
units to increase the number of potential parking spaces to the greatest degree possible. A conversion of motel rooms to 
multi-family units would require a minimum of two (2) parking spaces per unit. (see Waiver  of Section 6.05.4 below). 

A revised site plan was provided by the applicant to staff for review on December 23, 2022 showing a revised parking 
area for the twelve units with a proposed total of 6 additional diagonal parking spaces, in addition to the present twelve 
(12 delineated) parking spaces. 

 
LOT AREA: 
The subject property is approximately .64 acre (27,878 sq. ft.). 

 
NOTICES: 
Due to this being a Continuation of the ongoing Public Hearing, no new notices were provided to the abutters. Notices 
were sent to all property abutters in October.  

 
WAIVERS: 

1. Waiver of Development Regulations, Section 6.05.4 Table of Off-Street Parking to allow 1 parking space per unit 
where 2 spaces are required.  

2. Waiver of Development Regulations, Section 6.05.3 to allow for a reduction of the required parking space dimension. 

3. Waiver of Development Regulations, Section 6.08.5.A and B and Section 6.08.6 from requiring landscape buffers 
on/along the periphery of the property.  

4. Waiver of Development Regulations, Section 6.08.6 from requiring landscaping along the frontage of the existing 
building. 
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PARKING: 
The project proposes to maintain the existing 12 spaces that served the motel use.  The spaces had been redrawn to meet 
the minimum 9’x18’ area requirement. Per Section 6.05.4 of the Milford Development Regulations, each multi-family 
apartment requires a minimum of 2 spaces for a total of 24 spaces.  The applicant has asked for a Waiver of Development 
Regulations, Section 6.05.4 Table of Off-Street Parking to allow 1 parking space per unit where 2 spaces are required.  
 
Historically (and presently) the twelve-space parking lot (as field verified) shows parking space dimensions of: 
 
6 Northerly Parking Spaces @ 90 degrees = 8’ avg. width by 12’ length 
6 Westerly Diagonal Parking Spaces @ 45 degrees = 7.5’-8’ avg. width by 16’ length 
 
Staff Recommendation: Encourage the Planning Board to allow for a continuation of these existing parking space 
dimensions of 8’x 16’ to be retained, and provide the approval of the Waiver of Section 6.05.3 

 
UPDATED INTERDEPARTMENTAL REVIEWS (as of January 11, 2023): 

Original Comments: Community Development / Planning: 

1. The conversion of the building to a multi-family requires compliance with specific building and life safety codes. 
Town departments have actively and will continue work with the applicant and owner to bring the building into 
compliance as a 12 unit multi-family building.  This may require the installation of additional fire and life safety 
protection measures.   

2. Sheet 1. Revise the numbering of the listed Notes section to be sequential.   

3. Sheet 1.  The orientation and location of the proposed parking spaces result in potential internal conflict for the 
tenants of the apartments.  Staff recommends that the Planning Board direct staff to work with applicant to assist in 
the layout and design of the 12 existing parking spaces. If the Board supports the waiver request allowing the 12 total 
spaces, staff recommends that as part of the lease agreement for each unit, a condition specifically stating that one 
parking space is assigned per unit.  In addition, if the number of vehicles exceed 12 on the site on a consistent basis, 
the property owner shall be required to submit an amended site plan to the Planning Board seeking additional 
parking.  

4. Sheet 1. The applicant will be required to submit written approval of the owner the abutting parcel, Tax Map 16, Lot 
1-1 to allow the removal of the impervious pavement located between the properties and minor grading.  

5. Sheet 1.  Staff recommends that the Planning Board direct staff to work with the applicant to ensure said minor 
improvements and grading manage stormwater effectively on the properties.  

6. Sheet 1.  Revise the plan to include a dumpster pad and related screening detail.   
 

In addition to the original Staff Recommendations listed above, providing for a recommendation of conditional approval 
of the minor site plan incorporating Staff Comments 2 – 6 into the decision and granting of the waivers, the Planning 
Board should also consider the following (more recent) Staff Comments: 

NEW STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS/COMMENTS RECEIVED: 

1. Ambulance (Eric Schelberg, Ambulance Director): Asked if the corner (middle) unit’s front door hallway location 
could be re-aligned to better enable emergency personnel the ability to make the turn into the residential unit. 
Commented on the likely horizontal stretcher access difficulty (to and from the unit) due to the narrowness of the 
existing “dead-end” hallway terminus. It may cause horizontal stretchers to be titled up, causing un-due stress to a 
patient. 

2. Milford Water Utilities Dept. (Jim Pouliot, Water Utilities Director): Water Utilities needs to verify location of 
services. If the utilities are located in the additional parking area, then those services need to be in a spot to gain 
access at any time. 
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3. Drainage and Stormwater Management (Dawn Tuomala, Town Engineer) –  See attached 1/13/23 letter. 

4. Parking: The revised 12-23-22 Site Plan (see attached) does not facilitate safe vehicular movement throughout the 
parking lot area-as presently designed with the six (6) additional spaces being adding to the existing 12 parking 
spaces for a newly proposed total of eighteen (18) parking spaces.  

• In Lieu of the proposed six (6) additional spaces, to maintain and ensure safe vehicle maneuverability 
through the parking lot area, a maximum of three (3) additional 90-degree pull-in parking spaces may be 
achieved, abutting the southerly end of the west leg of the residential units.   

• The goal of obtaining an additional 5-6 parking spaces over and above the existing 12 parking spaces (as 
designed) is highly unlikely to be successfully accomplished. As well, the southwestern-most (existing) 
parking space warrants deletion in any site re-design.  

• In order to facilitate the concept of the three (3) additional parking spaces, the existing southwestern-most 
parking space will need to be eliminated, thus leaving eleven (11) original parking spaces. By designing 
and adding three additional parking spaces this would yield a new development total of: 14 Parking 
Spaces, overall.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The applicant should be prepared to address the comments raised by the Planning Board, Staff, and public pertaining to 
the Site Plan. The Planning Board will need to determine if the proposed site development meets the purpose and intent 
of the overlay and act on the waiver requests.   
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 Aerial Photograph(s) of Subject Property: 
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Zoning Map: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6  

Street View(s) of Subject Property: 

 
 

 

View of Property Looking West on Elm Street 

View of Property Looking NW on Elm Street 
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View of Property Looking North on Elm Street 

View of Property Looking NE on Elm Street 
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View of Property Looking East on Elm Street 























23A Middle Street, Newburyport, MA, 01950 

 

 

12/19/2022 

Lincoln Daley 

Director of Community Development 

Town of Milford, NH 

1 Union Square, Milford, NH 03055 

603-249-0620 

 

Dear Mr. Daley,  

We are requesting a waiver from section 6.05.4 to keep the existing parking spaces from the building being 
converted. Although motels are not an allowed use, a multifamily use would require two spots per unit and we can 
provide one spot per unit, plus one guest spot. These are small studio units, so the change of use would not 
increase the occupancy more than the current existing use. After discussion with the zoning board, we realized a 
desire from the town and neighbors was to also decrease pavement on site, which is why we are removing 
pavement in exchange for grass. 

We are also requesting a waiver from section 6.08.5 A&B and section 6.08.6 requiring landscape buffers along the 
periphery of the property. This property is unique as we have drainage along the left and rear side as well as 
existing buggers from corn to the rear. The existing parking lot is at the front of the site right now and there is not 
enough room for site lines for traffic flow if ground level vegetation is added along the frontage. Vegetation would 
cause traffic safety issue from a site line standpoint. One large “street tree” has been added to the front, and will 
have an elevated canopy that would not impede on site lines. 

Lastly, we are requesting a waiver of section 6.08.6 which requires vegetation along the frontage of the existing 
building, the way the parking currently exists, there is no room for these planting areas, as the parking extends 
right up to a front covered porch. Vegetation would not survive or work in between parking areas. 

 

Sincerely, 

Damon Amato, manager 

 

371 Elm st LLC 
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